
  

Code Enforcement Board Hearing Agenda Page 1 

CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD 
HEARING AGENDA 

 

MONDAY             TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MAY 20, 2024 - 9:30 AM         4300 S. ATLANTIC AVE., PONCE INLET, FL 

 
SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one or 
more members of the Town Council or other Town Boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 
 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
3. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 
 
4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA. 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION. Code Enforcement cases are quasi-

judicial and receipt of any information or discussion of any case outside of the public hearing is strongly 
discouraged. If a board member obtains any information or discusses any case outside the public hearing 
process, this information must be disclosed in detail by the board member prior to the presentation of the 
case and may not be considered by the board member when making any decision related to the case. 

  
6. ADMINISTERING THE OATH TO WITNESSES: Attorney Cino 
 
7. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 
 A. March 25, 2024 
 
8. OLD BUSINESS:  
 

       A.  Case # 2023-758: Property Address: 125 Ponce DeLeon Circle 
                        Owner(s): Albert & Cyndee Jarrell 

Alleged Violation(s): Unsafe Structure  
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
 A.  Case # 2024-324: Property Address: 112 Anchor Drive   

Owner(s): Ylian Snyder & Grant Renne  
Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required backflow preventor / 
and -or testing  

 
 B. Case # 2024-328: Property Address: 30 Inlet Point Blvd.   

Owner(s): R.F. Mohl   
Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required backflow preventor / 
and -or testing  

  



  

Code Enforcement Board Hearing Agenda Page 2 

 
 C. Case # 2024-332: Property Address: 35 Inlet Point Blvd   

Owner(s): CONFIDENTIAL – FS 119.071  
Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required backflow preventor / 
and -or testing  

 
 D. Case # 2024-333: Property Address: 36 Caribbean Way   

Owner(s): Randhir & Nekpal Singh  
Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required backflow preventor / 
and -or testing  

 
 E. Case # 2024-337: Property Address: 37 Coastal Oaks Circle    

Owner(s): Stacey & Steven Oshinski  
Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required backflow preventor / 
and -or testing  

 
 F. Case # 2024-338: Property Address: 4329 South Atlantic Avenue    

Owner(s): William Frazier   
Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required backflow preventor / 
and -or testing  

 
 G. Case # 2024-366: Property Address: 47 Oceanway   

Owner(s): Kevin Purucker  
Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required backflow preventor / 
and -or testing  

 
  
10. ATTORNEY DISCUSSION. 
 
11. BOARD/STAFF DISCUSSION. 
 
 A. Rental Discussion – Mrs. Richards  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT. 

 
Next hearing date: Monday, June 24, 2024 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Code Enforcement Board with respect to any matter considered 
at a hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. Persons who require accommodation to attend this hearing should contact the Clerk’s office at 
386-236-2150 by 4:00 pm at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to request such assistance. 



 
 

 

 
Report to Code Enforcement Board 

 
Topic: March 25, 2024 Hearing Minutes 
 
Summary:   
 
Staff has prepared the attached set of hearing minutes for the  Board’s 
review and approval. 
 
Suggested motion: 
 
To approve the attached set of hearing minutes As Presented - OR - As 
Amended 
 
Requested by: 
 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 
 
Approved by: 
 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   7-A 



  

Code Board Hearing Minutes March 25, 2024 Page 1 of 4 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

Code Enforcement Board 2 
Meeting Minutes 3 

March 25, 2024 4 
 5 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. in the Council 6 
Chambers, 4300 S. Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 7 
 8 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Led by Vice-Chair Cannon. 9 
 10 
3. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 11 
 Board Members Present:  12 
 Ms. Richards, Seat #1 13 
 Mr. Van Valkenburgh, Seat #2 14 
 Mr. Finch, Seat #3 (arrived at 9:39 am)  15 
 Mr. Michel, Seat #4 16 
 Ms. Cannon, Seat #5 17 
 Mr. Fuess, Alternate Seat #1 - Absent 18 
 Ms. Rij, Alternate Seat #2 19 
 20 
A quorum was established with four members and one alternate present. 21 
 22 
 Staff Members Present: 23 
  Attorney Cino, Code Board Attorney 24 
  Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 25 
  Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 26 
  Attorney Smith, Town Attorney 27 
  Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 28 
 29 
4. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA:  Ms. Richards moved to adopt the agenda as 30 
presented; seconded by Mr. Michel. The motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Ms. 31 
Richards – yes; Mr. Van Valkenburgh – yes; Mr. Michel – yes; Vice-Chair Cannon – yes; Ms. Rij 32 
– yes. 33 
 34 
5. DISCLOSURE OF EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION: None disclosed. 35 
 36 
6. ADMINISTERING THE OATH TO WITNESSES: Attorney Cino administered the 37 
Oath to the witnesses who intended to provide testimony. 38 
 39 
7. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 40 
 41 
 A. February 26, 2024  42 
 43 
Vice-Chair Cannon moved to adopt the minutes as amended; seconded by Mr. Michel. The motion 44 
PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Vice-Chair Cannon – yes; Mr. Michel – yes Ms. Richards - 45 
yes; Mr. Van Valkenburgh – yes; Ms. Rij – yes. 46 
 47 
8. OLD BUSINESS:   48 



  

Code Board Hearing Minutes March 25, 2024 Page 2 of 4 

A. Case # 2023-671: Property Address: 4740 South Atlantic Avenue #5 49 
Owner(s): Jamie & Maria Miller 50 
Alleged Violations(s): Work requiring permits 51 

 52 
Mr. Hooker reviewed the case history, noting that the case was presented to this board on January 53 
22, 2024, which found the owners in violation of the cited sections of code. The owners were 54 
granted 14 days on or before February 5, 2024, to obtain the required building permit. The case 55 
was presented again on February 26, 2024, at which time, the Board granted additional time for 56 
compliance based on evidence Mr. Miller provided at that hearing, extending the deadline to secure 57 
the required building permit to March 25, 2024. As of today’s hearing date, there has been no 58 
further communication with Mr. Miller, nor has a permit application been submitted. Staff requests 59 
the imposition of a $50 per day fine, retroactive to February 26, 2024; the $250 administrative fee 60 
has already been assessed and paid by Mr. Miller. Mr. Michel asked how many times staff 61 
contacted the owner. Mr. Hooker noted the owner had been contacted at least a dozen times during 62 
this process and he reviewed what has taken place thus far. Mr. Van Valkenburgh commented he 63 
had asked Mr. Miller last month if he understood what needed to be done and had suggested he 64 
meet with Mr. Hooker; he asked if that had taken place. Mr. Hooker replied no; there has been no 65 
communication since the last meeting.  66 
  67 
Mr. Michel moved to find the property in non-compliance; imposed a $50 per day fine, retroactive 68 
to February 26, 2024, until the matter is resolved; and noted that the $250 administrative fee has 69 
been assessed and paid; seconded by Vice-Chair Cannon. The motion PASSED 5-0, with the 70 
following vote: Mr. Michel – yes; Vice Chair Cannon – yes; Ms. Richards – yes; Mr. Van 71 
Valkenburgh – yes; Ms. Rij - yes.  72 
 73 

B. Case # 2023-758: Property Address: 125 Ponce DeLeon Circle 74 
Owner(s): Albert & Cyndee Jarrell 75 
Alleged Violation(s): Unsafe Structure 76 

 77 
Mr. Hooker reviewed the case history, noting that the case was presented to this board on January 78 
22, 2024, which found the owners in violation of the cited sections of code. The owners were 79 
granted 14 days on or before February 5, 2024, to secure the required permits. The case was 80 
brought back at the February 26, 2024, hearing, and the owners were granted an extension for 81 
compliance until March 5, 2024 to obtain the required permits. The owners applied for the required 82 
permits on March 14, 2024, after the March 5, 2024 deadline; the application is going through the 83 
review process with the building division and should be resolved soon. The administrative fee has 84 
been assessed and paid; staff requests to continue this case to the next scheduled hearing on April 85 
22, 2024 to allow time for the review process to be completed; should the permit be issued, staff 86 
will withdraw the case. Ms. Richards asked how long the review process is. Mr. Hooker explained 87 
it depends on the workload; currently, it is approximately two weeks. Mr. Van Valkenburgh asked 88 
for confirmation that Mr. Hooker’s recommendation is to bring this case back next month; and 89 
asked if additional information is needed, would that be up to the owner. Mr. Hooker explained 90 
yes; it will be on the agenda next month for an update on where this case stands. Ms. Richards 91 
asked if there is construction fencing around the property since it is an unsafe structure. Mr. Hooker 92 
noted that it is a vacant lot; “No Trespassing” signs are in place. The seawall has been shored; the 93 
permit is for it to be repaired. *Attorney Cino noted that Chair Finch is now present.* 94 
 95 
Vice-Chair Cannon moved to continue Case #2023-758 to the April 22, 2024; seconded by Mr. 96 
Michel. The motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Vice Chair Cannon – yes; Mr. Michel 97 
– yes; Ms. Richards – yes; Mr. Van Valkenburgh – yes; Chair Finch – yes.  98 



  

Code Board Hearing Minutes March 25, 2024 Page 3 of 4 

 99 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 100 
 101 

A. Case # 2023-779; Property Address: 4335 South Atlantic Avenue 102 
  Owner(s): Harriet Morris  103 
  Alleged Violation(s): Work requiring permits 104 
 105 
Staff requested this case be withdrawn; the owner complied prior to the compliance date stated on 106 
the violation. 107 
  108 
 B. Case #2024-149; Property Address: 4322 South Atlantic Avenue 109 
  Owner(s): Andrew Lampert 110 

Alleged Violation(s): Property Maintenance Issue involving lot and/or 111 
dwelling 112 

 113 
Staff requested this case be withdrawn; the owner complied prior to the compliance date stated on 114 
the violation. 115 
 116 
11. BOARD/STAFF DISCUSSION:  117 
 118 
 Case #2023-076 – 4734 South Atlantic Avenue 119 
 Owner(s): Aisha Moore 120 
 Requested Update Discussion – Mr. Hooker explained Ms. Moore has secured the 121 
required permits, the decking has been removed, and the permit is still active. The owner is in 122 
compliance with the Board’s order and the case has been closed out. The owner is working with 123 
her lending institutions and drawing up plans for the demolition of the interior of the home and a 124 
possible addition to the back of the house. Chair Finch asked when the permit will expire. Mr. 125 
Hooker explained he believes June. He stated the owner still must call the town for an inspection. 126 
Vice-Chair Cannon asked if a new permit would be required to install a new deck. Mr. Hooker 127 
explained yes. Mr. Finch asked if the permit for the deck demolition included the back deck. Mr. 128 
Hooker replied yes. Mr. Van Valkenburgh asked for confirmation that the owner is working on 129 
plans and lending for an interior remodel and noted the property has been in disarray for two and 130 
a half years. Mr. Van Valkenburgh asked if there was any policy or procedure that could be used 131 
to escalate the repairs. Attorney Smith explained the law is clear in that the Code Enforcement 132 
Board, as the judge, does not have the discretion to direct Code Enforcement to bring a case as it 133 
could prejudice any case that needed to be called. There is either a code violation or there is not. 134 
Mr. Hooker noted there are no pending violations per se; the house is vacant, and the unsafe 135 
balconies have been removed per the Board’s order. It is unsightly but not in a state of disrepair. 136 
Ms. Richards asked if the Town is responsible should someone trespass. Attorney Smith answered 137 
“no”.  138 
 139 
 Ms. Richards provided an update on the vacation rental property discussion held in 140 
January; she discussed it with the Mayor and the Council has agreed the issue needs more focus. 141 
Her take-away from that meeting was that the Town is looking at this, what the current 142 
enforcement methods are, and if properties are complying or not. She has other concerns she would 143 
like to discuss relating to this issue and asked if that could be a future agenda item. Chair Finch 144 
noted that there are enough questions regarding the issue and agreed it would be a good idea to 145 
place it on the agenda for discussion next month.  146 
 147 



  

Code Board Hearing Minutes March 25, 2024 Page 4 of 4 

 Mr. Hooker noted that the May meeting falls on Memorial Day and Town Hall will be 148 
closed; he requested moving the meeting date to May 20, 2024; the Board agreed by consensus. 149 
Mr. Hooker noted that the June meeting will likely be cancelled due to conferences.   150 
 151 
12. ADJOURNMENT: The hearing was adjourned at 9:55 a.m. 152 
 153 
Next hearing date: Monday, April 22, 2024 154 
 155 
Respectfully submitted by, 156 
 157 
     158 
Debbie Stewart, FCRM 159 
Assistant Deputy Clerk 160 



 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2023-758 
  Owner(s): Albert & Cyndee Jarrell 
  Property Address:  125 Ponce DeLeon Circle 
  Violation(s): Unsafe Structure 
 
Summary:  On January 22, 2024, this case was presented to the Board. 
The owners were found in non-compliance and granted until February 5, 
2024 to obtain the required permits. At the February 26, 2024 Code 
Enforcement Board hearing, the Board issued an order extending time for 
compliance until March 5, 2024 to cure the violation. At the March 25, 
2024 hearing, staff informed the Board that the required permit 
application had been submitted and requested additional time for the 
review process to take place.  
 
Staff will provide updated testimony and evidence regarding this case. 
The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that evidence and 
testimony. 
 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 
 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 
 
Approved by: 
 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   8-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET- PIANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET STAFF SHALL BE PROFESSIONAL, CARING, AND FAIR IN DELIVERING COMMUNl1Y EXCELLENCE WHILE 

ENSURING PONCE INLET CITIZENS OBTAIN 1HE GREATEST VALUE FOR THEIR TAX DOLLAR. 

TO: Code Enforcement Board 

THROUGH: Drew Smith, Town Attorney 

FROM: David Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

DATE: May 13, 2024 

DATE OF MEETING: May 20, 2024 

Case Number: 2023-758 
Address: 125 Ponce DeLeon Circle 

Alleged Violation: 
Work performed requiring permits 

Florida Building Code 
Section 116.1 - Conditions 

International Property Maintenance Code 
Section 101.1 - General 
Section 108.1.5 (3) & (7) - Dangerous Structures or Premises 
Section 301.3 - Vacant structures and land 
Section 302. 7 - Accessory Structures 

Brief History: 

On March 31, 2022, a contractor submitted a permit application (285-2022) for the reconstruction 
of a seawall at the specified location. Upon commencement of the work, inspections revealed 
deviations from the approved plans, leading to the issuance of a STOP WORK ORDER. 

Over the following weeks, the contractor collaborated with the staff to address the STOP WORK 
ORDER issue. On February 15, 2023, recognizing the impending expiration of the permit, the 
contractor formally requested an extension to prevent permit expiration. 

Page 1 of 2 

8-A









 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2024-324 
  Owner(s): Ylian Snyder & Grant Renne 
  Property Address: 112 Anchor Drive 
 Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required 

backflow preventor and/or testing 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide testimony and evidence regarding the 
following case. The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that 
evidence and testimony. 

 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   9-A 



MEMORANDUM 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET- PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET STAFF SHALL BE PROFESSIONAL, CARING, AND FAIR IN DELIVERING COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE WHILE 

ENSURING PONCE INLET CITIZENS OBTAIN THE GREATEST VALUE FOR THEIR TAX DOLLAR. 

TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Code Enforcement Board 

Drew Smith, Town Attorney 

David Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

May 13, 2024 

DATE OF MEETING: May 20, 2024 

Case Number: 2024-324 
Address: 112 Anchor Drive 

Alleged Violation: 

Irrigation system without the required backflow prevention device and/or passing test 
report being filed. 

Code of Ordinance 

Section 78-65 - Cross Connection Control 

Brief History: 

In accordance with the Florida Administrative Code and the Town's adopted municipal 
code, it is incumbent upon the Town to safeguard the integrity of its public water supply 
system. 

One crucial measure to· ensure this protection is the installation of backflow prevention 
devices between individual properties and the Town's water meters. 

Beginning in 2023, the Town's Public Works Department initiated a proactive effort to 
identify properties lacking the requisite backflow prevention devices. Therefore, on 
December 5, 2023, certified letters were dispatched to approximately 110 property owners, 
apprising them of their non-compliance regarding backflow prevention device installation 
and how to correct. 

Page 1 of2 

9-A













 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2024-328 
  Owner(s): R.F. Mohl 
  Property Address: 30 Inlet Point Boulevard 
 Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required 

backflow preventor and/or testing 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide testimony and evidence regarding the 
following case. The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that 
evidence and testimony. 

 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   9-B 



9-B













 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2024-332 
  Owner(s): Scott & Amy Garrett 
  Property Address: 35 Inlet Point Boulevard 
 Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required 

backflow preventor and/or testing 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide testimony and evidence regarding the 
following case. The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that 
evidence and testimony. 

 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   9-C 



9-C













 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2024-333 
  Owner(s): Randhir & Nekpal Singh 
  Property Address: 36 Caribbean Way 
 Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required 

backflow preventor and/or testing 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide testimony and evidence regarding the 
following case. The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that 
evidence and testimony. 

 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   9-D 



9-D













 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2024-337 
  Owner(s): Stacey & Steven Oshinski 
  Property Address: 37 Coastal Oaks Circle 
 Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required 

backflow preventor and/or testing 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide testimony and evidence regarding the 
following case. The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that 
evidence and testimony. 

 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   9-E 



9-E













 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2024-338 
  Owner(s): William Frazier 
  Property Address: 4329 South Atlantic Avenue  
 Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required 

backflow preventor and/or testing 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide testimony and evidence regarding the 
following case. The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that 
evidence and testimony. 

 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   9-F 



9-F













 
 

 
 

Report to Code Enforcement Board 
 
Topic: Case #2024-366 
  Owner(s): Kevin Purucker 
  Property Address: 47 Oceanway  
 Alleged Violation(s): Irrigation system without the required 

backflow preventor and/or testing 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide testimony and evidence regarding the 
following case. The Board will be asked to make a decision based on that 
evidence and testimony. 

 
Suggested motion: To be determined by the Board after testimony and 
evidence has been provided on the case. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 

Agenda Item:   9-G 



9-G












	CEB Agenda 5-20-2024
	CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD
	HEARING AGENDA

	7 Cover
	7-A  03-25-2024 CEB Minutes
	8-A  Cover
	8-A
	9-A  Cover
	9-A
	9-B   Cover
	9-B
	9-C   Cover
	9-C
	9-D   Cover
	9-D
	9-E   Cover
	9-E
	9-F   Cover
	9-F
	9-G   Cover
	9-G



